
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
Peterborough, New Hampshire 

 
CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD 

 
Tuesday, August 21, 2007 

SAU Office 
 

Personnel Committee 
6:30 p.m. 

 
School Board 

7 p.m. 
 

MINUTES 
 

Board         Administration 
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon,     Dick Bergeron, Supt. 
Stewart Brock, Gail Cromwell,      Don Johnson, Asst. Supt. 
Butch Estey, Bart Goodeve,      Marian Alese, B.A. 
Dan Harper, Craig Hicks,       Linda Potter, SpEd. 
Arthur Knight, Mary Loftis,       Sue Copley, PES 
Bill McKinnon, Tom Welden     Sue Dell, CVHS 
         Dick Dunning, SMS 
         Pamela Matthews, Pierce 
         Gib West, GBS 
 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
Tom Welden called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
  
2.  Minutes (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 1-10) 
 a.  July 24, 2007 
Butch Estey moved to accept the minutes of the July 24, 2007 meeting.  Stewart Brock 
second.  Beverly Bacon abstained.  All else in favor.   
  
3.  Public Comment 
 a.  LOFT Community School – Mark Taft and Aaron Pope 
Tom said that both Mark Taft and Aaron Pope will provide a presentation on the LOFT Community 
School.   
Mark Taft said that there is a group of people present tonight working to further LOFT Community 
School.  We are here to talk about education.  Students learn in different ways, at different rates 
and one size does not fit all.  The essential question of how does one school in one town meet the 
needs of all students should be considered.  The challenges facing public education are greater 
diversity Ð learning styles, cultures and interests exist.  Increasing poverty, NCLB Ð state testing, 
AYP, HQT, and narrowing the curriculum as well as Drop Out rates are existing challenges.  
Additional challenges include disengaged students, special education needs, maintaining 
community support and making changes quickly.  There exists a competency based assessment 
 
 
 
 



 

in a course based environment.  Asymmetric learners in a symmetrically designed system exist.  
Social promotion and retention does not work.  We pass students along through promotion that do 
not possess the necessary skills.  We are stuck in a constructed system that is mismatched for 
educating the youth today.  School personnel feel like they have an impossible task.   
How can LOFT help?  Aaron Pope shared the vision.  The vision is to transform education so that 
all children are successful, assist districts to successfully educate all students, and help districts 
with limited resources provide alternative opportunities for students and families.   
The LOFT Plan is to establish an Independent Regional K Ð 12 Public Magnet School, to be a 
school collaboratively supported by multiple school districts and regional businesses, to be a 
regional center for professional development, to be a research and development center that can 
implement new ideas more rapidly, to provide parents and students with the opportunity for public 
school choice.   
The LOFT Community School would be a non-graded school for students ages 5 -21.  It will assist 
lower, intermediate and upper level students.  Benefits were outlined.   
Aaron outlined the next steps to include meeting with the Commissioner of Education, meeting with 
other school districts in the region, meet with the Superintendents of schools, develop collaborative 
funding model, and hold community meetings throughout the community.   
Aaron thanked everyone for taking the time to listen to their presentation.   
Dan Harper asked how this actually worked.  Mark Taft said that there would be a separate facility 
in the region.  It would be taking the best from many places into one location. 
Bart asked what the targeted size of the school would be.  Mark said several hundred students is 
the goal.  Mary Allen asked how the region would be defined.  Mark said that he is meeting with 
Keene, Jaffrey/Rindge among others to determine interest.   
Marian asked what LOFTÕs expectation of the ConVal district is.  Mark said that the immediate 
expectation is some form of a sign that continued dialogue is desired.  Marian asked the criterion 
for admission.  Mark said that it would be a lottery.  The desire of LOFT is to match the population 
of the region.  For example, if there is a 10% Special Education population then that is the desire 
of LOFT.  Bart asked if it would be a charter school, private school or public school.  Mark 
answered that the goal is for it to be a public school. 
Stewart asked about staffing levels.  Mark said that the staffing would be similar to the public 
schools.   
Tom Welden thanked both Mark and Aaron for their presentation.  Tom said that if public hearings 
take place in the area that Board members would attend.   
 
4.  Title 1 Summer Program Presentation (Pg. 11) 
Pamela Matthews, Pierce Elementary School, introduced members present from Pierce as well as 
students.  Pamela said that the Title 1 Summer Program was for those students identified through 
Title 1 that need a little extra attention.  This summer program is built around models used in 
Reading Recovery.  For nine days, four teachers took 25 children from five Title 1 schools three 
days a week.  Busses picked children up at their homes.  Painting, dancing, reading and eating 
took place.  Beautiful books with beautiful artwork and writing was produced.  On the last day, 
parents come to share a picnic where students read their books.  Pamela said that it is a wonderful 
program that helps with early intervention with loss of literacy over the summer.  Pamela thanked 
the Board and the school district for this opportunity.  In addition, a power point presentation was 
given.  A student shared her work.   
Stewart thanked the staff for working over the summer and for their passion.     
 
5.  Consent Agenda 
 a.  Freshman Orientation Information (Pg. 12) 
Tom Welden referenced the freshman orientation information included in tonightÕs packet. 
   
 



 

 b. CVHS Welcome Letter to Students (Pgs. 13-14) 
Tom referenced the Welcome Letter from CVHS to students included in tonightÕs packet.   
 
 c.  State Board of Education Agenda (Pgs. 15-16) 
Tom referenced the State Board of Education Agenda included in tonightÕs packet.   
 
 d.  Monthly Events Calendar (Pg. 17) 
Tom said that the first and third TuesdayÕs are the regular Board meetings. 
 
Dick Bergeron invited Dick Dunning to share some information on the summer work he has done. 
Dick Dunning said that PBIS has changed the climate in the school community.  He is looking for a 
way to address the red zone students.  Staff are looking for a way to address students when 
behavior is unacceptable.   
Dick said that PBIS has set the stage.  He said that how a teacher presents to a student about 
their behavior is important.  Dick cited a simple example.  Instead of being combative, it looks at 
the students needs.  Internal forces change behaviors, not external behaviors.  The goal is to find 
the tools for staff to look at the studentÕs internal drive.   
Dick said that this is a critical piece that we can bring to staff.  The proof will be when reviewing 
SWIS data to see if the referral count changes.  A picnic lunch was provided.  Dick said that the 
Food Service program has made a significant difference in this district.   
Mary Loftis asked if staff that did not attend would be informed.  Dick confirmed that staff will be 
met with to share with.   
 
Dick Bergeron said that Administration completed their two-day retreat today.  The agenda will be 
shared at a future Board meeting. 
 
6.  Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business 

a. Request to Accept a Gift or Donation (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 18-19) 
1. Great Brook School has received from The Gilbert Verney Foundation of 

Bennington, a donation of $7,500 for the purpose of supporting the seventh grade 
trip to Kieve Wavus in Maine 

Gib said that the Verney foundation has supported this trip with over half the necessary funds.  Gib 
said that he has sent a letter of thanks to the Verney foundation for their very generous gift.   
Craig Hicks moved to accept the gift of $7,500 from the Gilbert Verney Foundation.  Mary 
Allen second.  Unanimous with thanks. 
  

b. Field Trip Proposals (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 20-21) 
1. South Meadow School - Grade 8 class would like to travel to Philadelphia, 

Washington DC, Gettysburg and Valley Forge in June 2008, as part of the 
American History tour 

 
2. South Meadow School Ð Grade 5 would like to travel to Ferry Beach Ecology 

School from Sept. 10 Ð 14, 2007, as part the Annual Ecology week 
Dick Bergeron read the field trips above.   
 
Stewart Brock moved to allow the two SMS Field Trips listed above.  Beverly Bacon second.  
Unanimous. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
c. Fuel Lock Down – Collaborative Venture (Pg. 22) 

Marian said that she is pleased to obtain a price of $ 2.249 as the lockdown price.  The price 
is lower than last year because she worked with the company to lower the price regardless of 
smaller drop requirements.  Marian notified the appropriate towns.   
 

d. Personnel – (Please Bring Your Agenda With You) (Board Vote Required) 
Dan Harper moved to accept the nominations as read.  Stewart Brock second.  Unanimous. 
  
7.  Board Sub-Committee Reports 

a. Education 
Beverly said that they met August 13th.  She said that Dick Bergeron presented an organization 
tool and curriculum plan.  It was insightful and they opted to move forward.   
The next Education meeting will take place on September 10th.   
 

b. Budget and Property 
Craig Hicks said that Budget & Property met last evening.  The Default budget was discussed, 
budget timeline was presented for each month.  Craig said that we are ahead of schedule. 
The next Budget & Property meeting will take place on September 17th.   
 

c. Personnel 
Dan Harper said that Personnel met prior to tonightÕs Board meeting.  Nominations were locked in.  
Discussion around the process and job description of the LADC position took place. 
Personnel will meet next on September 4th. 
 

d. Communications (Pgs. 23-30) 
1. Communications Plan 2007 (Draft v4) 

Stewart Brock distributed a copy of the Communications Plan (See Attachment #1).  They did not 
meet this month.  The goal is to improve communication.  Stewart reviewed his handout.  One 
person will own responsibility.  Information will be reported out as needed.    
Mary Allen said that they are looking toward to focusing on communicating successes such as the 
Ocean Bowl win among other successes within the district out to our communities.  Student 
achievements are the concentration.   
Mary Loftis said that the communication involving the Superintendent is around goals.  Local 
media through perhaps a column in the newspapers is one desire.  Student involvement in this 
area will be sought.  Fun facts will include fun topics in the district.  They will be interesting facts 
that can be shared.   
Mary Allen said that general information will also be provided.  The schools will know the contact 
names of press to get the word out.  Special news will include many things.  One example would 
be the leak at PES.  It will be a catch all.  The goal is accurate, consistent and timely reporting.   
The Communications Committee will meet next on September 24th at 7:00 p.m.   
Dan Harper asked how this information will go out.  Stewart said that list serve as well as posted 
information will take place.   
 

e. Drug Committee – Butch Estey  
 1.  Policy Review Ð First Board Reading (Pgs. 31-32)  

!  JFCH Ð Alcohol and Substance Abuse (Pgs. 33-37) 
!  JFCH-R Ð Alcohol and Substance Abuse/Violations and Sanctions (Pgs. 33-37) 
!  JFCHA Ð Drug or Alcohol Treatment Records (Pgs. 38-42) 
!  JFCG Ð Tobacco Use (Pg. 43) 

 
 



 

 
Butch said that the committee is very pleased to bring this forward tonight.  He gave special thanks 
to Bart for updating as the committee moved along.  The policy will be updated in the future as well 
to stay current.   
  
Butch Estey moved to accept policies JFCH, JFCH-R, JFCHA and JFCG.  Stewart Brock 
second. 
 
Butch said that anything that is struck out will be removed from the policy.  JFCH was totally 
rewritten to bring it up to date.  There is a lot more going on in the world then when this was 
written.  We want to address what affects the schools.  Butch said that we want to push forth new 
policies 
JFCH-R has been rewritten almost completely.  The kids are entitled to a drug free learning 
environment.  There is a zero tolerance policy toward drug or alcohol use on school grounds.  We 
clarified what no student shall be allowed to do.  Restrictions were very detailed.  Given 
reasonable suspicion, school administrators may conduct certain actions which were outlined.   
Butch said that at one time, if a student in the high school violated this policy they were sent out for 
ten days.  Butch said that there are so many kids that are under the radar.  A LADC can help a 
student before it becomes an issue.  The LADC will have expertise in this area.  Should a student 
violate policy in the high school for a first offense, if the student agrees to counseling, a suspension 
of up to five days will be given.  Fifteen hours of certified LADC counseling will be available.  Up to 
eight hours of community service will be provided as well.  Should the student not accept 
counseling, they may receive up to ten days suspension.  Second offense, a student is subject to 
sixty day co curricular suspension, with counseling or not different consequences apply.  A reentry 
plan must be in place before returning to school.  Other provisions were outlined in the area of 
consequences.   
Butch addressed Prescription drugs and other medication abuse.   
JFCHA Ð has been completely changed due to federal guidelines that have come into place.   
JFCG Ð surrounding tobacco use was detailed. 
  
Tom said that this is a first reading and will remain on the table for one month. 
 
Unanimous in agreeing this to remain on the table for one month. 
 
Tom thanked the committee for their work in steering this work through.   
 
8.  Old Business 
 a.  PES and TES Update (Pgs. 44-50) 
Marian referenced page 44 of tonightÕs packet outlining information.  As of yesterday, minor work 
still was required.  John Eldridge reported that trim work and punch list items were being 
completed today.  The final cleaning is 90% complete.  John said that it is coming together very 
well.  The upgrade of the tile is very nice.   
 
 b.  Expanding Technology Access (Pgs. 51-58) 
Dick asked Gib to report information for Board approval.  Gib distributed a handout titled 
ÒAddendum to Proposal ÒExpanding Technology Access at GBSÓ.  (See Attachment #2) 
Gib said that bringing forward option ÒBÕ is the most prudent.   
Sarah Hale and Matthew Hale were present.  Sarah said that she has been working at GBS 
looking at the computing environment.  Sarah said that challenges were assessed.  Aging 
equipment was looked at.  She searched to work with various equipment with the ability to work at 
the same level.  Teacher to computer ratio was examined.  This is important so that it is a natural 
next step to pass on to students.  The current student to computer ratio is 7:1.  Nationally the ratio 



 

 
is 3:1.  Sarah said that budgetary limitations was examined.  Different operating systems is a 
problem.  48 of the 60 student machines will fall off in three years.  Other models were looked at in 
other schools and businesses.  Resara for Education was looked at.  Sarah said that she comes to 
the Board to look for their support in investing in a piece of hardware at the network level that 
allows them to expand student work stations in the school.  The 7:1 student/computer ratio could 
be dropped to 5:1 just this year with a small investment.  By moving to two servers, the 4:1 ratio 
would be achieved.  Sarah said that she feels that Plan B is a viable option and she was looking 
for the Boards support.  It offers more to the students than we can currently offer.  Comprable 
programs would be offered.   
Craig thanked Sarah for her presentation.  Craig asked Sarah if we budgeted already.  Matthew 
said that we would utilize the current infrastructure.  The server is doing all of the work.   
Stewart asked about compatibility as students move up to the high school.  Matthew said that this 
would translate well into the high school.   
Marian said that she went to GBS and met with Gib, Sarah and Matthew.  She sat in front of a 
stand alone PC and a thin client device.  Both machines came up, thin client came up immediately.  
The stand alone PC took much more time to get up and running.  Marian added that Sarah sent a 
document that Marian was able to download and modify.  She said that she enthusiastically 
supports this.  
Dan Harper asked how much more Option ÒCÓ would cost.  Sarah said that it would require another 
server.  Dan asked Marian if we could consider Option ÒCÓ.   
Marian said that it would be a shift of existing funding.  Option ÒBÓ would make a fairly significant 
impact to students at GBS right now.   
Arthur Knight asked about the down sides.  Matthew said that if the server goes down it would be a 
down side.  It is not much of a down side because of the technology.  Arthur asked if this would 
take place just at GBS.  Dick confirmed. 
Dick Bergeron said that he wants to see kids use the system.  He wants to know what the issues 
we confront rather than suspect.  Dick said that he encourages the creativeness but he wants to 
see it work.  Matthew added that Jaffrey/Rindge invested in 45 seats and has since invested in 
over one hundred seats.   
Mary Allen asked what the student ratio to computers was at SMS.  Dick Dunning did not know 
exactly.  Mary asked if Option ÒBÓ was selected was an additional $ 15,000 needed.  It was 
confirmed.  Marian added that some building projects and renovations allow some wiggle room in 
this area.   
Mary Allen was in favor and looked forward to knowing its successes.   
Stewart asked if there were technology grants or partnering with businesses in existence.   
Marian said that it is possible that there is Title IID money.   
 
Craig Hicks moved to expand the technology at GBS with this proposal.  Mary Allen second.  
Unanimous.   
  
 c.  Superintendent Evaluation Tool – Stewart Brock 
Stewart distributed two copies. (See Attachments #3 and #4)  Superintendent goals are proposed.  
They will be measurable.  Leadership will be measurable.  The right culture is important to be set.  
Student achievement will be reviewed.  Human Resources is important.  Communications is 
detailed as well as School Board relations.  The Superintendent will be measured on his Planning 
and Organization abilities.  Yearly goals will be stated.  Approximately thirty-five items will be 
measured.  Feedback will be sought.  Stewart said that smaller groups may exist to better measure 
in an attempt to be fair.   
Tom thanked Stewart for his hard work in bringing this together.  Tom said that he hopes to finalize 
goals on August 29th.   
 



 

 
 d.  FYI – NESDEC Work Session – August 29, 2007 
Tom said that on Wednesday, August 29th at 6:00 p.m. a meeting will take place.  The meeting is 
the last step with NESDEC to help finalize goals for the upcoming year.   
 
9.  New Business 
 a.  Antrim Gym Update (Pgs. 59-63) 
Marian referenced a letter included in tonightÕs packet that references an agreement between the 
district and the Antrim Rec Department surrounding gym use.  Marian added that it is her 
understanding that there will be an after school program in the gym.  Gib said that he does not 
have many details.  He has asked for insurance information and is seeking other information.   
Mary Allen said that a meeting took place on August 13th.  She said that The Grapevine is the 
group pursuing this after school program.  Gib said that the insurance piece and knowledge of 
student participation is being sought.   
Marian said that this conversation came out of a discussion with Antrim Rec.  The parties need to 
revisit and meet.   
Tom said that Marian and Craig could get together to meet.  Mary Allen asked for awareness of the 
meeting date when it is set.   
 
 b.  Adequacy Grant Funding Changes (Pgs. 64-65) 
Tom said that the State is giving the district roughly the same amount of money but that it is being 
reallocated differently.  There are some fairly substantial swings and the towns need to be aware 
of this.   
 
 c.  NECAP Results 
Dick Bergeron said results will be available on August 27th.  The public will have access through 
the DOE Website.  Mr. Johnson will report more at the next meeting.   
  
10.  Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required) 
Marian certified that manifests 6 Ð 23 totaling $ 831,965.90 and Payroll 3 and 3.1, 4 and 4.1, 4.2 
and 4.3 totaling $ 392,392.79 have been reviewed by me and found to be proper charges against 
the Contoocook Valley School District for goods and/or services received and have been properly 
processed prior to the submittal to the School Board. 
 
Craig Hicks moved to accept the approval of the manifests as read.  Arthur Knight second.  
Unanimous.   
  
11.  Non-Public Session:  RSA 91-A:3,IIc 
 a.  Negotiations 
 b.  Personnel 
 
Dan Harper motioned in accordance with RSA 91-A:3, IIc to enter non-public session for the 
purposes of negotiations and personnel.  Unanimous.   
 
Butch Estey moved to exit non-public session at 10:00 p.m. and to seal the minutes.   
Craig Hicks second.  Unanimous.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Brenda Marschok 


